
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
This will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The Local Authorities 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 

11 March 2021 
 
To:  Members of the Living History Task and Finish Group (Councillors D Bowater, 
K Cursons, A Dodwell, M Freeman, V Harvey, G Perham and P Snelling) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Living History Task and Finish 
Group to be held on Wednesday, 24 March 2021 commencing at 9.30 am. This will be 
a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance 
with The Local Authorities and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020.  
 
tinyurl.com/5g65yb3h or by tel: +44 20 3795 5672 (Conf ID: #) 
 

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.  
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of 
it.  

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).  

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


LIVING HISTORY TASK AND FINISH GROUP Wednesday, 24 March 2021 
 

 

 

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g).  
 

4.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Living History 

Task and Finish Group meeting held on 28 January 2021. 

 

(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 

meeting (if appropriate). 

 

5.   PROPOSAL DISCUSSION PAPER (Pages 5 - 8) 

 

 To receive and consider a discussion paper on future work proposals. 
(attached)  

 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



   
   

Page 1 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

LIVING HISTORY TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 

MONDAY 28 JANUARY 2021 AT 1000 HOURS  
 

Present: Councillors  D Bowater (Chair) 
  A Dodwell (Vice Chair) 
  M Freeman 
  G Perham 
      

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
  V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic  
  Services) 

 B Bodsworth, (Town and Community 
Promotions Manager) 

 F Khan, (Town and Community Promotions 
Officer) 

  M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
   
        

       Members of the Public:   0  
 
 

01/LH APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
  Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Harvey and Snelling.  
 
 02/LH  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
 

  It was proposed and seconded that Councillor Bowater be appointed Chair of 
the Living History Task and Finish Group.  There were no further nominations.  
On being put to the vote, the motion was carried. 

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Bowater Chair of the Living History Task 
and Finish Group. 
 
Councillor Bowater took the Chair.       

 
03/LH It was proposed and seconded that Councillor Dodwell be appointed Vice Chair   
   of the Living History Task and Finish Group. 
 

 RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Dodwell Vice Chair of the Living History 
Task and Finish Group.  

 
 

04/LH  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 

           Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
No declarations were made.  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Living History Task & Finish Group 28 JANUARY 2021 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 2 

 05/LH QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 
 There were no questions from members of the public. 
 
06/LH REVIEW OF THE LIVING HISTORY EVENT   
 
 Members received and considered an information paper to review the Living 

History Event and a proposal document for how the event may run in the future. 
 
 It was felt that the event had a lack of focus and had become stagnat. Apart from 

the restrictions of COVID in the immediate future, there was uncertainty of the 
purpose of the event long-term. Previous delivery had often lacked direct 
connectivity with the Town’s detailed history. More recently, event delivery had 
attempted to strengthen this aspect. A targeted historic trail had been created 
for Living History Day in 2020 focusing on local shops and was available digitally 
or could be physically undertaken in the High Street.  This information remains 
accessible and could still  be used by schools or local groups as a learning 
activity. The booklet titled, The Changing Face of our Pubs, created from a 
previous event was on the Council’s website.  Taking a different approach had 
created legacy information.  

 
 A suggestion was made to change the time of year the event was held as the 

weather in October was unpredictable.  Another suggestion as a short term 
solution  was to use the empty shop windows to display moving images giving 
historic information so members of the public could access them as and when 
required. This would require a dedicated budget being available all year round 
as shops do not all become empty at the same time.  

 
 It was felt that October would be the earliest suitable opportunity to hold such an 

event if at all this year with the possible postponement of any physical event until 
2022. A question was raised as to whether this event should continue or should 
it be taken out of the calendar and the money used for something else, taking a 
different approach in developing Living History work, or could Living History 
activities be bolted onto one of our other events in the future. 

 
 The location would also need to be reviewed as the socially distanced market 

layout would not allow for it to be held in the High Street.  A suggestion of using 
one of the parks, maybe Pages Park was made using the Railway Museum and 
their history to enhance an event approach.   

 
 The Proposal for future Living History activity was to build on a combination of 

targeted delivery of activity that serves to work alongside the long-term 
continued creation of historic information about the town, whether that be in 
digital or publication formats, or both.  Using a similar approach as with the 
Children’s Trail with an activity sheet and reading list and adding a new trail on 
to the Buzzard Trails which can be accessed via the app. 

 
The information would be updated annually with the launch of a new trail and 
characters from the trail could be positioned around the town highlighting the 
history of the building or location.  It was hoped that local drama groups would 
be commissioned to deliver the performances of the characters or if not available 

Page 2



Living History Task & Finish Group 28 JANUARY 2021 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 3 

professional performers.  Videos could be made and uploaded to the Leighton-
Linslade Town Council social media and website to promote the trails.  A printed 
booklet would also be available for those not able to access an app or website.  

 
 Members agreed to take take these comments through to the next meeting when 

it was hoped more Councillors would be available, CBC meetings would be taken 
into account,  so allowing more points of view and discussions on how to proceed 
with the Living History event/themed work in the short and long term. 

 
  

The meeting closed at 1110 hours. 
 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 JANUARY  2021. 

  

 

Chair              24 MARCH 2021 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
Living History Task and Finish Group      

 
Date:    24 March 2021 
 
Purpose of the Report: Review of the Living History event 

discussion paper 
 
Contact Officer: Ben Bodsworth  
 

 
PROPOSAL DISCUSSION PAPER 

  
1. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
1.1  At its first meeting the Group requested a continuation of the discussion around 

the following points: 
 

 A more developed purpose for the themed event of Living History with direct 
connectivity of activities to the Town.   

 A focus on ‘living’ history (to include within living generations). 

 Creation of legacy information that schools, clubs and groups can engage 
with as part of their learning following any activity delivery. 

 Exploration to move away from the current dates/delivery approach, e.g., 
bolting a history activity onto other events, changing the delivery dates, an 
ongoing development of history activity with no specific event date, or a 
specific event delivery. 

 Maintaining an element of performance / engagement when new historic 
activity is created. 

 Consideration is for the long-term future of the Living History Event.  
 
1.2 Cultural and Economic Services Committee, at its meeting on 01/03/21, 

requested the group consider including Black History Month (BHM) in its 
considerations. The fixed annual month for BHM is October. If delivery of history 
themed activity is moved, it would not prevent the inclusion of black and ethnic 
minority residents’ stories in proposed activities.  

 
1.3 There remains a keen interest in continuing to translate local history into 

accessible and engaging formats to : 

 Celebrate, 

 Inform and educate, 

 Engender pride, 

 Introduce the town’s history to new residents, 

 Ensure the Town’s history and ‘living’ history remains known and apparent. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
  
1.4 Previously, discussion identified a lack of a clearly stated remit for the event. 

The 5 bullet points listed at 1.3 could serve to offer a guiding remit for activities 
delivered under the theme Living History.  
 
 

2. PROPOSED DELIVERY  
 
2.1 To deliver both physical and digital content via the Buzzard Trails app, 

launching a new trail annually in October. Alongside the digital content, a period 
of additional publicity would take place.  

 
2.2 Additional publicity would include characters from the trail positioned around 

the Town Centre (or wider area) in the location which they are associated with 
alongside refreshed social and printed media messaging about the Buzzard 
Trails app.  
 

2.3 A theme or time-period could be chosen for each trail, ensuring diversity and 
inclusivity with the characters and locations chosen. This may also include 
members of the public currently living or working within the town.  
 

2.4 Following the delivery of the annual launch activity, the trail would become 
available for individual members of the public, schools and uniformed 
organisations to take part in at any time either physically or digitally.  

 
2.5 For those not able to use an app or website, a printed booklet would be made 

available alongside a downloadable version from the Leighton-Linslade Town 
Council website.  
 

2.6 Through the app and the website, those who have an interest in Leighton-
Linslade but live outside of the parish would also be able to access the legacy 
content. This approach extends the activity and budget to span the whole of the 
calendar year.   
 

2.7 To ensure the long-term viability of Living History trails and legacy projects 
within the town, the budget for the Living History Day would be used. The 
budget for Living History Day has been £10,700 annually (101/4516).  
 

2.8 An annual budget to deliver the History Trails and legacy projects would be 
(approx.);  

 
 

Living History Trail - Sourcing of trail information 
- Vocal recording 
- Location & map updating 
- Uploading onto app / app 

edits 
 

£2,500 

Page 6



 
  

Promotion  - On street activity (re-
enactment characters up to 
x 5 persons) 

- Signage around town 
- Newspaper / printed media 

advertising  
 

£3,000 

Legacy & Printed 
media  

- Filming of characters in 
position, editing & uploading 
onto website  

- Activity packs for schools / 
youth groups  

- Printed booklets for those 
without internet access 

£2,000 

Town History 
Projects  

- Additional legacy / town 
history projects / 
installations  

£3,200 

 TOTAL £10,700 

  
 
3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1  Initial discussions recognised a lack of guiding principles for the theme of Living 

History whether it is delivered as an event, or differently, e.g., above proposal.  
The 5 bullet points listed at 1.3 could offer this guidance.  

 
3.2 The proposals in section 2 would allow the town to be celebrated all year round  

by those who visit, live and work within the Parish. 
 
3.3 Digital content can allow information to be accessed throughout the year and 

without geographical boundaries.  Physical and printed content ensures those 
without access to the internet remain included, and able to obtain the 
information shared. Content can be designed to be useful to community groups 
and schools.  
 

3.4 The above proposal aims to extend the reach and longevity of the work created 
under Council’s existing remit to celebrate the Town’s history. The approach 
recognises new and existing presentation formats.  It builds on the recently 
developed legacy information and would create more towards developing a 
‘catalogue’ of unique insights to the Town’s history. This level of open access 
provides good value for money. 

 
 
End 
 
 
  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 PROPOSAL DISCUSSION PAPER

